Second Judicial District of Minnesota Housing Court



Report of Opportunities and Recommendations

July 20th, 2017





Table of Contents

Overview	1
The Ramsey County Rental Market	
Multi-Stakeholder Coalition Examines the Issue	1
Appointment of the Workgroup	2
June 12th Meeting	
Section One: Priority Recommendations	
On the Day of the First Appearance Calendar	4
With the Issuance of the Summons	5
At the Filing of the Eviction Complaint	
Before a Complaint is Filed	7
General Recommendations	8
Section Two: Recommendations to Consider at a Later Date	9
Section Three: Appendices	11
Appendix A: Roster of Participants	11
Appendix B: Second Judicial District of Minnesota Inventory of Legal, Financial, and Social Services	12

Overview

The Ramsey County Rental Market

Nearly 150,000 households in the Minneapolis-Saint Paul metropolitan area (approximately 1 in 8) spend 50% or more of their income on housing. Rental vacancies have dipped to historic lows, and rents have risen quickly. The supply of subsidized affordable housing production and preservation will not increase sufficiently to make a dent in these cost-burdened residents' lives in the next decade. *The Space Between*, a 2013 study conducted through the Minnesota Preservation Plus Initiative, found that *un*subsidized units comprise 57% of Twin Cities rentals affordable at 50% area median income (AMI).

Looking closely at Saint Paul, 51% of residents live in rental housing and 52% of them are considered to be "cost burdened," meaning they spend more than 30% of their income on rent. Nearly three out of four households of color in Saint Paul rent their housing.³ They are disproportionately subjected to poor quality housing and high rates of evictions.

An analysis of data from Minnesota's Second Judicial District's Housing Court (Ramsey County) found that approximately 3,000 evictions have been filed annually in recent years, the vast majority for non-payment of rent. More than half of those filings resulted in a settlement and another 13 - 17 percent were dismissed, yet the parties still incurred court expenses, attorney's fees, and lost time. Further, the mere filing of an eviction permits a tenant's rental history to be reported by tenant screening agencies. Thus, regardless of the outcome of the case, a stigma follows the tenant and may impair the formation of future landlord-tenant relationships. To landlords utilizing a tenant screening agency, a settlement often has the same effect as a judgment in favor of the landlord.

Multi-Stakeholder Coalition Examines the Issue

To address challenges in the rental market that frequently find their way into the Second Judicial District Housing Court ("Housing Court" or "Court"), Chief Judge John Guthmann convened a group of relevant stakeholders and potential partners, in partnership with The McKnight Foundation and the National Center for State Courts. One of the goals of the group was to determine the extent to which a problem-solving approach

¹ http://www.metrocouncil.org/getattachment/a6216685-af2c-405c-a300-06f2f1f4dcea/.aspx

² http://www.gmhf.com/downloads/publications-research-reports/The-Space-Between.pdf Strategic partners of this study include Family Housing Fund, Minnesota Housing Finance Agency, and Greater Minnesota Housing Fund. Project team members include One Roof Global Consulting, Housing Preservation Project, and Urban Land Institute of Minnesota.

³ ACS 2013 data. Some data in this section identified via Minnesota Compass analysis of 2013 ACS data. http://www.mncompass.org/profiles/custom/minneapolis-saint-paul

could to be applied to the Housing Court. The group met three times as a whole in 2017: February 17, March 31, and June 12. A working group (described in more detail below) met between the second and third meetings, both in person and by phone, to develop a set of recommendations. The group agreed that the quality of and fair access to rental housing was inadequate, and it sought to identify potential remedies that would address market challenges, and ensure a fair and effective process for all litigants appearing in the Housing Court.

Appointment of the Workgroup

At the second meeting on March 31, 2017, the Honorable John Guthmann appointed a workgroup to develop strategies and recommendations to strengthen access for landlords and tenants to legal, financial and social services—before, during and after the Housing Court first appearance calendar. The workgroup met April 25, 2017 to observe the first appearance calendar and then discuss potential strategies and recommendations to offer the broader group at its third meeting on June 12, 2017.

The following members participated on April 25, 2017: Pa Zao Vang; Carol Buche; Patricia Whitney; Laura Busian; Jeanne Zimmer; Michal Upton; Bridget Blomer; Referee Clysdale; Traci Joseph; Gerry Kaluzny; Colleen Ebinger; Patti Tobias; and Hon. Judge Guthmann.

The workgroup discussed potential recommendations and opportunities to strengthen access to financial, social, and legal services on the day of the first appearance calendar, with the issuance of the summons, at the filing of the complaint, and before a complaint is filed. Workgroup members were also encouraged to submit recommendations following this meeting.

A draft report of opportunities and recommendations summarized those discussions and included recommendations received from workgroup members. The draft report was refined by conference call on May 26 and circulated to the workgroup inviting priorities and omissions.

Recommendations and opportunities were organized into five (5) categories:

- 1) On the day of the first appearance calendar
- 2) With the issuance of the summons
- 3) At the filing of the complaint
- 4) Before a complaint is filed
- 5) General recommendations

June 12th Meeting

The Honorable Chief Judge John Guthmann presided over the third meeting to "Apply a Problem-Solving Approach to the Second Judicial District Housing Court." Judge Guthmann led a discussion of the *Report of*

Opportunities and Recommendations submitted by the first appearance workgroup. The purpose of the discussion was to identify priorities, next steps and responsible persons to act on the recommendations, once authorized to move forward by Judge Guthmann. Judge Guthmann asked that an updated Report of Opportunities and Recommendations, categorized by Priority, be circulated for review. The Second Judicial District of Minnesota Inventory of Legal, Financial, and Social Services identified for both landlords and tenants will also be updated and circulated for review.

The *Report of Opportunities and Recommendations* is divided into three sections:

- 1) Priority Recommendations
- 2) Recommendations to consider at a later date
- 3) Appendices, including a roster of participants and the Second Judicial District of Minnesota Inventory of Legal, Financial, and Social Services available to landlords, tenants and those working with landlords and tenants in Ramsey County

Section One: Priority Recommendations

On the Day of the First Appearance Calendar

1. Strengthen the information available and announcements made in the courtroom to improve understanding of the proceeding.

Action Steps: Announcements which explain what will happen procedurally at the beginning of each court session should be made by both the Clerk and the Judicial officer. The announcements should describe the services available and the expectations of the Court; the order in which cases will be called; if a settlement is reached, that your case may be called sooner; and that the court will call your case in priority order. Develop a script of the recommended announcements. Develop and provide an information sheet at "check-in" to assure the same information is available in writing for the landlords and tenants. Slides should also be developed to be shown on screens in the courtroom.

Responsible Persons: Referee Clysdale (lead).

2. Continue to incorporate the principles of procedural fairness in all interactions with landlords and tenants to ensure understanding, provide "voice", demonstrate respect, ensure neutrality and to be helpful.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Distribute quality and complete information to landlords and tenants that describes what to expect before, during and after the calendar. Provide on-going feedback to Judicial Officers.

<u>Responsible Persons:</u> Referee Clysdale (lead) and Michael Upton; with all Housing Court Judicial Officers, Patricia Whitney, and Gerry Kaluzny.

3. Continue to give parties the opportunity to explain their side of the court case. When a case is called, Judicial Officers may wish to make direct referrals from the bench if the parties have special needs.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Ensure all Judicial Officers and court personnel are aware of the services available and contact information to provide to the parties.

Responsible Persons: Referee Clysdale and Michael Upton.

4. Provide space outside the courtroom on first appearance calendar days to Ramsey County Human Services Emergency Assistance (EA) personnel to provide immediate information and screening on financial resources and eligibility. For those who have already accessed EA within the last 12 months or are not eligible for a different, immediately ascertainable reason, workers can quickly provide a denial letter which expedites access to community-based financial resources.

Action Steps: Court personnel can provide court calendars to EA personnel (seven-14 days in advance) so they can search their records and prepare for the day of the calendar. EA personnel may contact landlords for information and/or may reach out to tenants. The Court is a tenant in the County Courthouse but can begin to work out logistical details about the use of space.

Responsible Persons: Michael Upton (lead); and a representative from Emergency Assistance.

5. Expand representation options at the first appearance calendar for both landlords and tenants, whether through limited scope representation, pro bono, law school clinics or by adding a full-time volunteer lawyer through the Volunteer Lawyers Network.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Arrange a meeting to discuss funding, how Housing Court calendars will be staffed, and a plan to provide that staffing.

Responsible Persons: Gerry Kaluzny and Laura Busian.

6. Ensure availability of mediators the day of the first appearance calendar. This should be done in coordination with legal representation to avoid a power imbalance.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Judicial Officers should add to their announcements at the beginning of the calendar that mediators are available, and if a settlement is reached that same day, the case will go to the beginning of the line. Secure space for mediators to meet with the parties. Develop a roster of interested mediators and how those mediators might be available prior to the first appearance calendar.

Responsible Persons: Jeanne Zimmer (lead) and Michael Upton.

7. On the settlement agreement form, add a box requesting expungement. If the case is settled and/or rent is paid by a date certain, require the attorney for the landlord to be authorized to approve or oppose the expungement. Communicate to the parties that expungement can be recommended to the court and by agreement and affidavit, if the parties desire that result.

Action Item: Referee Clysdale will review the Settlement form and add necessary language.

Responsible Persons: Referee Clysdale (lead).

With the Issuance of the Summons

1. Develop information about "what to expect on the day of the first appearance calendar" and steps that can be taken before the date of the calendar, and distribute this information with the issuance of the summons.

Action Steps: This information should also be provided on the Housing Court website, and should additionally be provided in the courtroom. The information should include a brief description of financial, legal and social service resources available, contact information, and useful websites for the parties. Expand description of EA services available and describe what eligibility information should be provided by the tenant. Encourage tenants to seek information immediately and, if eligible, submit an application. Add a description of the "same day" EA application to information provided to tenants and landlords. Add links to various websites to the Housing Court website.

<u>Responsible Persons:</u> Michael Upton (lead collector), with all persons representing financial, legal and social services providing Michael with the information they recommend be included.

At the Filing of the Eviction Complaint

1. Develop a "pilot" mediation program for eviction actions so that at the filing of the eviction action the parties will be ordered to consult with a mediator in advance of, or the same day as, the first appearance calendar.

Action Steps: Determine if any cases should be excluded from the pilot mediation program, for example if an order of protection or harassment restraining order exists. Essential elements of a mediation "pilot" program should include the use of mediators experienced in housing law, that all parties have full settlement authority, and that counsel is provided for all parties, if possible. The first appearance calendar(s) may need to be staggered to accommodate the "pilot" mediation program. A variety of models could be explored and outside funding should be pursued.

<u>Responsible Persons:</u> Jeanne Zimmer and judicial officer to be named from the Second Judicial District (co-leads); convening a small group to develop and market the availability of this service.

Before a Complaint is Filed

 Encourage parties, both landlords and tenants, to consider voluntary mediation offered by a neutral entity outside the court.

<u>Action Item:</u> Widely promote the availability of this service and encourage its use at every opportunity. For example, EA could provide an information sheet from the Dispute Resolution Center (DRC) when meeting with a tenant.

<u>Responsible Persons:</u> Jeanne Zimmer (lead), convening a small group to develop and market the availability of this service.

2. Provide comprehensive online resources to financial, legal and social services to help the parties resolve disputes. Widely market the availability of this information at every opportunity. Develop marketing and education strategies to expand the availability of information about options, strategies and solutions.

Action Steps: Provide information on the court's website 1) to landlords, "have you considered certain options before filing a complaint?" and 2) to tenants, "financial, social and legal resources that may assist you." Add links to the EA website and perhaps others taken from the Court's website.

<u>Responsible Persons:</u> Gerry Kaluzny and Patricia Whitney (lead); working with a coalition of interested others to design intervention strategies, including representatives from both landlords and tenants.

General Recommendations

1. Explore the viability of a Housing Court administrative order to maintain the confidentiality of an eviction filing until the case is determined on the merits, or explore amending the General Rules of Practice – Housing Court Rules – Hennepin and Ramsey County or Minnesota statutes to provide that an eviction filing be maintained confidentially until a judicial officer has determined the case on its merits and the tenant has been ordered evicted. Alternatively, research the effect of inaccurate eviction records on children, families and people who are disabled and, if appropriate, propose a rule change that would make evictions confidential at filing, like domestic abuse cases and CHIPs cases; or amend the expungement statute to provide that if the tenant prevails, an automatic expungement of the record would occur.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Circulate a copy of the minutes of the 2016 expungement discussions by the public access committee to inform the workgroup on possible options.

Responsible Persons: Michael Upton (lead) will obtain the minutes and circulate them to the group.

2. Communicate the opportunity for a waiver of court fees and costs for the expungement of an eviction record by the filing of an in forma pauperis (IFP) application, including a motion, affidavit, and proposed order.

Action Steps: Develop uniform information and a plan to make it available.

Responsible Persons: Michael Upton and Gerry Kaluzny.

3. Expand awareness of the Ramsey County Law Library Housing Clinic and supplement these clinics with services provided by the Volunteer Lawyers Network and Southern Minnesota Regional Legal Services.

<u>Action Steps:</u> Representatives from the Law Library and other entities will meet and develop a plan to supplement the clinics.

Responsible Persons: Sara Gillin (lead); Gerry Kaluzny and Laura Busian.

4. Strengthen coordination and communication with Saint Paul Public Housing Authority to ensure broad understanding among both landlords and tenants regarding requirements and responsibilities related to the Section 8 Housing Choice voucher program.

Action Steps: Representatives will meet, discuss options, and make recommendations.

Responsible Persons: Patricia Whitney and Gerry Kaluzny.

Section Two: Recommendations to Consider at a Later Date

The group decided to focus on the immediate priorities outlined in section one. The "other recommendations" included in this section will take more time to develop. Any member interested in pursuing any of these recommendations should contact Chief Judge Guthmann.

- of the court's time and the need to minimize litigant and attorney time in the courthouse. Experiment with the availability of resources, staffing and services. Technology, such as kiosks that permit parties to check-in, should also be considered. The use of electronic check-in systems can help ensure that parties are not mistakenly overlooked and their case not heard timely.
- 2. Given some litigants will have limited English understanding and are culturally diverse, continuously assess all signs, forms, and key information for understanding and ensure court interpreters are accessible when needed. The availability of interpreters will also need to be aligned with other services available—i.e., mediation, financial assistance, pro bono attorneys, etc.
- 3. To curb misunderstandings, provide standardized guidelines to all litigants and parties concerning how settlement negotiations are conducted and the consequences of all settlements. Develop a neutral, onepage information sheet that describes the settlement process.
- 4. Before accepting settlements, judicial officers should ascertain that all parties understand the agreement and its implications. See recommendation 11.4 of the CCJ Civil Justice Initiative (CJI). Request examples from other jurisdictions.
- 5. Provide Housing Court "advocates" (like the model of domestic violence advocates) to assist tenants not represented by counsel. Housing Court "advocates" could sit at the counsel table and offer support to the tenant but would not speak on behalf of the tenant, and would only provide non-legal assistance. If a gap still exists after other priority recommendations are implemented, this model may provide a much-needed resource to the parties. The service could be developed by statute, court rule, or order of the Supreme Court.

- 6. Explore the use of "Housing Court navigators" to link tenants to financial, legal and social service resources. Like Housing Court advocates, these potential resources should be examined at a later date if a gap in services exists.
- 7. Amend standard lease agreements to provide information regarding legal, financial and social services for tenants and landlords. This could be undertaken by the Office of the Attorney General.

Section Three: Appendices

Appendix A: Roster of Participants

Name	Organization	Title
Chief Judge John Guthmann	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Chief Judge
Judge Shawn Bartsh	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Judge
Referee Elizabeth Clysdale	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Referee
Lynae Olson	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Court Administrator
Michael Upton	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Court Operations Manager, Civil Division
Pa Zao Vang	Second Judicial District of Minnesota	Court Operations Supervisor
Sara Galligan	Ramsey County Law Library	Director
Juin Charnell	Ramsey County Financial Assistance Services	Manager of Operations
Traci Joseph	Ramsey County Financial Assistance Services	Emergency Assistance Supervisor
Tenecia Johnson	Ramsey County Financial Assistance Services	Homeless Services Supervisor
Bridget Blomer	Ramsey County Financial Assistance Services	Financial Worker
Scott Williams	Ramsey County Safety and Justice Services	Deputy County Manager
Amy Geisler	City of Saint Paul Department of Planning and Economic Development	Principal Project Manager, Housing
Samuel Clark	City of Saint Paul	City Attorney
Carol Buche	Twin City Tenant Check	Owner
Patricia Whitney	Patricia Whitney Attorney at Law	Owner & Attorney
Laura Busian	Volunteer Lawyers Network	Housing Resource Attorney & Program Manager
Gerry Kaluzny	Southern Minnesota Regional Legal Services	Supervising Attorney, Housing
Jeanne Zimmer	Dispute Resolution Center	Executive Director
Ellen Sahli	Family Housing Fund	President
Lee Sheehy	The McKnight Foundation	Director, Region and Communities
Colleen Ebinger	Impact Strategies Group	Founder/CEO
Patti Tobias	National Center for State Courts	Principal Court Management Consultant

Appendix B: Second Judicial District of Minnesota Inventory of Legal, Financial, and Social Services

Second Judicial District of Minnesota Inventory of Legal, Financial, and Social Services

Draft-Updated July 12th, 2017

#	Category	Title	Description	Income Eligibility	Contact
1	Legal Assistance	Housing Conciliation Court Brief Advice Clinic	https://www.ramseycounty.us/sites/default/files/Libraries/Housing%20and%20Conciliation%20Court%20Brochure.pdf Informative session on self-representation in court which takes place at the Ramsey County Law Library Tuesday afternoons from 1PM-4PM; residential requirement or party must be taking a case through the Court.	None	(651) 266- 8391
2	Legal Assistance	Law Help MN	http://www.lawhelpmn.org/issues/housing http://www.lawhelpmn.org/issues/housing/evictions?channel=legal%2Dinformati on&category=fact%2Dsheets http://www.lawhelpmn.org/resource/tenants-rights-in-minnesota?ref=XR5qM Links to numerous Minnesota housing legal resources, tenant rights, and fact sheets. Also offers live chat and legal advice online.	N/A	Also available in the RC Law Library: Ref. Desk and Browsing Shelf
3	Legal Assistance	HOME Line	https://homelinemn.org/ Provides free and low-cost legal, organizing, education, and advocacy services so that tenants throughout Minnesota can solve their own rental housing problems. Provides assistance in English, Spanish, and Somali. HOME Line works to improve public and private policies relating to rental housing by involving affected tenants in the process. Offers legal advice and help obtaining representation.	None	(612) 728- 5767 OR (866) 866- 3546
4	Legal Assistance	Volunteers of America-MN & WI	https://www.voa.org/offices/volunteers-of-america-of-minnesota-wisconsin Provides some legal advice in the areas of housing issues.	Sliding-fee scale	(612) 676- 6300
5	Legal Assistance	Ramsey County Law Library	The Ramsey County Law Library provides residents with free law-related resources including books, journals, electronic databases, informational workshops and legal assistance. Law Library staff members are trained in legal research and can assist patrons in locating legal information in the library.	None	(651) 266- 8391
6	Legal Services	Southern Minnesota Regional Legal Services ⁴	http://www.smrls.org Staff and volunteer attorneys provide full representation, brief legal services, advice and referrals on senior law issues including health program eligibility, nursing home discharge, and government benefits. On staff translators for Hmong, Khmer, Lao, Russian, Somali, Spanish and Thai.	Priority for the most economically needy elders	(888) 575- 2954

⁴ Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet

7	Legal Services	Volunteer Lawyers Network	www.vlnmn.org OR www.vlnmn.org/intake Provides civil legal services to low-income people through volunteer attorneys; unavailable for fee generating (money damage) cases. VLN offers both full representation and advice.	125%-300% depending on program	(612) 752- 6677
8	Legal Services	Ramsey County Bar Association Referral Service	http://www.ramseybar.org/find-a-lawyer/ The RCBA program offers full representation for those who don't qualify for Legal Aid due to income. RCBA staff will explain the case to an attorney and will set up a date and time for an appointment. There is a \$20 referral fee. All attorneys work at a rate of \$55/hr with a \$600 initial retainer fee. There is no charge from the attorney for the first 30 minute consultation. This representation is unavailable for fee generating (money damages) cases.	N/A	(651) 224- 1775 ars@ramseyb ar.org
9	Legal Services	Cancer Legal Line	Phone line which provides legal advice and full representation to Minnesotans affected by cancer in the areas of housing and financial needs. ⁵	Advice-None Representatio n-up to 300% FPG	(651) 917- 9000
10	Legal Services	Band Member Legal Aid	Provides free legal services to enrolled members of the Mille Lacs Band of Ojibwe in areas of housing and other law. Provides full representation and brief legal advice.	Only enrolled members	(320) 532- 7798; (800) 709-6445
11	Legal Services	Spanish Legal Services (SLS)	Provides advice and brief services in Spanish on housing issues, including assistance with writing letters and filling out forms. ⁷	200% FPG	(612) 752- 6677
12	Legal Services	Veterans Legal Services	Provides services to veterans in the area of veteran housing. Provides full representation and brief legal advice. ⁸	125% FPG	(612) 332- 8151
13	Legal Information	Landlords and Tenants: Rights and Responsibilities (Office of the Minnesota Attorney General)	https://www.ag.state.mn.us/Consumer/Handbooks/LT/default.asp https://www.ag.state.mn.us/Brochures/pubLandlordTenants.pdf Certain rights and duties apply to landlords and tenants everywhere in Minnesota. This handbook attempts to explain those rights. This booklet should not be considered legal advice to use in resolving specific landlord-tenant problems or questions. It is a summary of the laws that govern the landlord-tenant relationship. Minn. Statute § 504B.181, subd. 2(b) requires landlords to notify residential tenants that this handbook is available to them.	None	Also available in the RC Law Library: Browsing Shelf
14	Legal Information	MN Legal Services State Support	http://www.mnlegalservices.org/ State Support's unique role is to provide information, connections, and tools for the public and for advocates, and to support the civil legal aid programs who share their mission.	None	(651) 228- 9105 OR (651) 842- 6913 (Jessica

Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet
 Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet
 Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet
 Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet

					Nault) statesupport @mnlegalserv ices.org
15	Legal Information	Tenant Rights, Laws and Protections: Minnesota	https://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/states/minnesota/renting/tenantrights Federal website providing state specific tenant rights resources. HUD also handles complaints about housing discrimination, bad landlords in federal housing and many other issues, and the website contains a link to the complaint form.	None	N/A
16	Legal Information	Law Help MN	http://www.lawhelpmn.org/issues/housing http://www.lawhelpmn.org/issues/housing/evictions?channel=legal%2Dinformati on&category=fact%2Dsheets http://www.lawhelpmn.org/resource/tenants-rights-in-minnesota?ref=XR5qM Links to numerous Minnesota housing legal resources, tenant rights, and fact sheets. Also offers live chat and legal advice online.	None	Also available in the RC Law Library: Ref. Desk and Browsing Shelf
17	Legal Information	How to Be the Smartest Renter on Your Block (Book for purchase)	https://homelinemn.org/publications/how-to-be-the-smartest-renter-on-your-block/ HOME Line wrote <i>How to Be the Smartest Renter on Your Block</i> to help renters through the process of finding, getting, and maintaining rental housing. Reflecting upon the real-life concerns we hear through thousands of questions on our tenant hotline, this book gives advice on the best ways to handle and avoid the most common rental problems. This book follows the rental process from beginning to end with several additional chapters on unique rental housing situations. The book begins with advice regarding finding and applying for an apartment and moves on to understanding the terms of a lease. Next, some of the most common issues renters run into once they've moved in are covered—getting repairs made, dealing with neighbors, right to privacy, and more. Later, the book addresses what to expect when a renter intends to move out of an apartment and how to make sure a security deposit is returned. Furthermore, several immediate emerging issues in the rental market are covered: What does a renter do when a landlord is in foreclosure? Who is responsible for paying when an apartment becomes infested with bedbugs? Lastly, we take a detailed look at community organizing and how tenants can work collectively to hold their landlords and elected officials accountable. How to Be the Smartest Renter on Your Block answers these questions and more	\$20 book w/\$3 shipping; \$9.99 online; Free at the library	Also available in the RC Law Library: Circ. KFM 5517 .H68 2011
18	Legal Information	The Landlord's Guide to Minnesota Law (Book for purchase)	https://homelinemn.org/publications/landlordsguidetomnlaw/ The Landlord's Guide to Minnesota Law addresses every landlord-tenant legal issue that is likely to arise over the course of a lease. From how to find a tenant to what to do once they leave, it is a practical and thorough legal analysis of what Minnesota landlords need to know about complying with the relevant federal, state and local laws.	\$25 book w/\$5 shipping; \$9.99 online; Free at the library	Also available in the RC Law Library: Circ. KFM 5517 .V72 2015

			At the end of each chapter you'll find "Tips from a Tenant Attorney." These tips offer more creative advice on how landlords can solve difficult legal situations or prevent them from ever occurring. Also included is our exclusive line-by-line analysis of the Minnesota State Bar Association's Model Residential Lease. Instead of guessing what your lease terms mean, this guide tells you why each term exists and how it applies to your situation. This book was written by practicing attorneys in Minnesota who work exclusively in landlord-tenant law. There are dozens of legal guides available online for landlords, but none of them focus on Minnesota statutes and regulations, and when it comes to landlord-tenant legal issues, state law is key.		
19	Legal Information	Residential Eviction Defense and Tenant Claims in Minnesota, Sixteenth Edition	http://povertylaw.homestead.com/files/Reading/Residential Eviction Defense in Minnesota.pdf Addresses legal action that can be taken by tenants against landlords in a variety of instances.	None	(612) 492- 6795; McDonough. Lawrence@D orsey.com; mcdono56@u mn.edu
20	Legal Information	MMHA-Minnesota Multi Housing Association "How to File an Eviction Action in Minnesota"	http://www.mmha.com/Portals/33/docs/Eviction%20Brochure.pdf Briefly addresses legal action that can be taken by landlords against tenants when trying to file an eviction.	None	N/A
21	Legal Information	Disability LinkAge Line ⁹	Phone only information and referral service for people with disabilities, including housing and benefit referrals.	None	(800) 333- 2466
22	Financial	Ramsey County	Website Coming Soon-Policy effective August 22, 2014	N/A	N/A
22	Services	Emergency Assistance	Outlines the process for obtaining emergency assistance (EA).	IN/A	IV/A
23	Financial Services	Supportive Housing for Families	http://www.ppl-inc.org/the-hub/housing/ppl-supportive-housing-programs/ Provides supportive housing opportunities throughout the Metro Area for individuals and families from specific populations, including those who have experienced homelessness, are living with a disability, have experienced chemical dependency, or who have a criminal background.	Eligibility requirements vary depending on the program.	(612) 455- 5100
24	Financial Services	Ramsey County Emergency General Assistance (EGA)	https://www.ramseycounty.us/sites/default/files/Assistance%20and%20Support/ EGA%20Policy%202016.pdf Eligibility and application information for Emergency General Assistance (EGA). This does not include the application itself, which can be accessed by speaking to a representative at 651-266-4444.	No greater than 200%; Eligibility will be determined by speaking	(651) 266- 4444

⁹ Source: Call for Justice, LLC State-Wide Legal Resources Cheat Sheet
National Center for State Courts

				with a case worker.	
25	Social Services	Neighborhood House	http://neighb.org/programs/ Offers services in the areas of basic needs and lifelong learning, and has six Family Centers to help people with food support and housing. Neighborhood House's lifelong learning programming takes place at their West Side location in the Paul & Sheila Wellstone Center for Community Building. All of their programs and services are offered free of charge to participants.	None	(651) 789- 2500
26	Court Services	Minnesota Judicial Branch: Landlord & Tenant Issues	http://www.mncourts.gov/Help-Topics/Landlord-and-Tenant-Issues.aspx Provides information about landlord and tenant issues as well as links to resources.	None	N/A
27	Court Services	MN Courts Self-Help Center	www.mncourts.gov/selfhelp A virtual self-help center available by phone and email through the Minnesota Judicial Branch that helps parties fill out various forms.	None	(651) 259- 3888
				1	
28	Housing Services	Project for Pride in Living	http://www.ppl-inc.org/ http://www.ppl-inc.org/the-hub/housing/housing-resources-from-ppl/ http://www.ppl-inc.org/the-hub/housing/ppl-affordable-housing-rental-criteria/ PPL develops and sustains quality, affordable housing for lower-income families and individuals through new construction, renovation, and management.	See website for application criteria.	(612) 455- 5100
29	Housing Services	HousingLink	http://www.housinglink.org The goal of HousingLink is to improve housing conditions and provide greater awareness of housing options in different neighborhoods for families participating in the Section 8 voucher and public housing programs. HousingLink's mission is "to improve people's lives through information expanding their affordable rental choices." There are over 45,000 searches each month for affordable rental housing on our website. HousingLink also publishes the status of subsidized housing waiting lists in the Twin Cities through the Housing Authority Waiting List. Renters and service agencies also use Housing Tips and training they provide to solve housing problems. Staff at human service agencies in Minnesota use HousingLink's resources to help their clients overcome barriers to their housing search, and to answer questions about subsidized housing programs in Minnesota. Landlords and property managers use HousingLink to advertise their rental housing openings for free. Finally, HousingLink conducts research that is used by policymakers and research organizations to shape affordable housing policy in the Twin Cities and the state of Minnesota.	Income eligibility requirements depend on property chosen.	(612) 522- 2500
30	Housing Services	CommonBond Communities	http://properties.commonbond.org/ CommonBond Communities, the Midwest's largest nonprofit provider of affordable housing with services, has served the region for over 40 years. They develop, own or manage more than 5,600 affordable rental apartments and townhomes throughout	Income eligibility requirements depend on	(651) 291- 1750

			50 cities in Minnesota, Wisconsin and Iowa. Over 10,000 people — including families, older adults, and people with disabilities and other barriers — call CommonBond home, more than 2,500 of which are children.	property chosen.	
31	Housing Services	Aeon	https://www.aeonmn.org/properties/ Affordable housing is necessary for individuals, families and communities to succeed. Aeon is committed to strengthening lives and communities by investing millions of dollars in under-capitalized neighborhoods and transforming blighted areas into vibrant places to live and work. Affordable apartment homes are especially critical for households with very low incomes (at or below 30% Area Median Income) who are not candidates for home ownership and have few rental options.	Income eligibility requirements depend on property chosen, but all properties are affordable to those with 60% of AMI. ¹⁰	(612) 341- 3148
32	Housing Services	St. Stephens	https://ststephensmpls.org/programs/housing St. Stephen's housing programs offer people experiencing homelessness the range of support they need to stabilize their lives using the Housing First service approach. This strategy moves people into stable housing first. Once this basic need is met, they work with families and individuals to address other challenges they may be facing (unemployment, chemical addiction, mental health care, financial literacy). They then connect them to support services that enable them to keep their housing and avoid a return to homelessness.	N/A	(612) 874- 0311
33	Housing Services	Amherst H. Wilder Foundation Supportive Housing Sites and Services	https://www.wilder.org/Programs-Services/Housing-Services/Pages/Supportive-Housing.aspx Provides links to different programs that help end homelessness and provide affordable housing such as the ROOF Project, Project Quest, Jackson Street Village, and Minnesota Place Apartments.	Income eligibility requirements depend on property chosen.	(651) 215- 2262
34	Housing Services	Coordinated Access to Housing and Shelter (CAHS)	http://www.ramseycountycahs.com/ Coordinated Access to Housing and Shelter is the coordinated entry system in Ramsey County for families experiencing homelessness. CAHS connects HUD homeless families with supportive housing programs as openings are available.	A housing assessment must be completed to determine eligibility.	(651) 215- 2262
35	Housing Services	Ramsey County Housing Resource List	http://www.ramsey.headinghomeminnesota.org/sites/ramsey.headinghomeminnesota.org/files/RC-HOUSING-RESOURCE-LIST.pdf Resource list for homelessness prevention and intervention. The resource list specifically focuses on housing designed for families with children, single adults, single women with children, youth, and victims and survivors of domestic violence.	Income eligibility requirements depend on property chosen.	N/A

	1 -			1	1
36	Other Resources	United Way 211 Call for Justice Twin Cities Metro Cheat Sheet	http://callforjustice.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Metro-CS-Merged-05-23-2017.pdf Identifies various Twin Cities legal resources, and provides the listings by service area (bankruptcy, family law, landlord/tenant, etc.).	N/A	N/A
37	Other Resources	Dispute Resolution Center	www.disputeresolutioncenter.org DRC works with individuals, families, community groups, government agencies, and businesses to assist them in resolving conflict. DRC handles many types of community problems, including matters of public safety, traffic and parking, rental arrangements, consumer-merchant disputes, neighborhood conflicts, complaints about noise or pets, property line disputes, and small claims concerning money, property damage, or breach of contract. DRC recruits and trains a diverse group of volunteer mediators and maintains a roster of approximately sixty to seventy-five volunteers who represent a broad cross-section of the community and serve as mediators, staff assistance, and board members. DRC offers services on a sliding scale, and they never turn away someone who is unable to pay.	Sliding Scale	(651) 292- 7791
38	Other Resources	Domestic Abuse Resources in Ramsey County	https://www.ramseycounty.us/residents/assistance-support/intervention-protection/domestic-abuse Provides resources for those experiencing domestic violence.	N/A	Various phone numbers are listed on the website.
39	Other Resources	Saint Paul Handbook of the Streets, 2016- 2017 13 th Edition	https://ststephensmpls.org/sites/default/files/shb-1617.pdf An extensive resource guide for poor and homeless Minnesotans which provides resources broken down into the following categories: food, shelter, public assistance, health care, education, employments, veteran services, and legal services.	N/A	Also available in the RC Law Library: Ref. 4506.5
40	Other Resources	Saint Paul Tenant- Landlord Resources	https://www.stpaul.gov/departments/planning-economic- development/housing/tenant-landlord Resources for tenant/landlord issues in the Saint Paul area.	N/A	N/A
41	Other Resources	Saint Paul Tenant- Landlord Safety Registration and Complaints	https://www.stpaul.gov/departments/safety-inspections/city-information-complaints/resident-handbook/how-make-housing-o Resources for tenant/landlord safety concerns in the Saint Paul area. Provides guidance for tenants when their landlords are not making requested repairs, and provides guidance for landlords when they are registering their property.	N/A	N/A
42	Other Resources	Community Stabilization Project (CSP)	http://csp501dale.wixsite.com/communitystabproject CSP's mission is to build tenant stability that will lead to community by informing, educating, advocating for and organizing tenants to take action to preserve and increase the supply of healthy, safe and affordable housing 43in the City of Saint Paul. Their goals are to work with tenants, landlords and community stakeholders to:	N/A	(651) 225- 8778

43	Other Resources	LegalCORPS	1)Prevent rental property condemnation/foreclosures and tenant evictions; 2)Prevent homelessness for tenants affected by condemnation, foreclosures, and evictions; 3)Increase awareness of tenant/ landlord responsibilities and rights to ensure housing stability 4)Strengthen relationships between tenants and landlords http://legalcorps.org/ LegalCORPS provides free assistance in non-litigation business law matters to lowincome owners of small businesses, small nonprofit organizations and low-income innovators in Minnesota — through the services of volunteer attorneys.	N/A	(612) 206- 0780; info@legalcor ps.org
44	Law Library Resources	Every Landlord's Guide to Managing Property	Nolo, 2015. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 B69 2015	N/A	N/A
45	Law Library Resources	Every Landlord's Legal Guide	Nolo, 2016. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 S74 2016	N/A	N/A
46	Law Library Resources	Every Tenant's Legal Guide	Nolo, 2015. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 P67 2015	N/A	N/A
47	Law Library Resources	The Landlord's Guide to Minnesota Law	HOMELine, 2015. Circ. KFM 5517.V72 2015	N/A	N/A
48	Law Library Resources	Leases and Rental Agreements	Nolo, 2015. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 S744 2011	N/A	N/A
49	Law Library Resources	Renter's Rights	Nolo, 2015 Circ. KF 590 .Z9 P673 2015	N/A	N/A
50	Law Library Resources	Every Landlord's Guide to Managing Property	Nolo, 2015. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 B69 2015	N/A	N/A
51	Law Library Resources	Every Landlord's Legal Guide	Nolo, 2016. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 S74 2016	N/A	N/A
52	Law Library Resources	Every Tenant's Legal Guide	Nolo, 2015. Circ. KF 590 .Z9 P67 2015	N/A	N/A